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Unionbank of the Philippines
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 UPAY via InstaPay (For Individual Non-Unionbank Account Holders)
Taxpayer Agent/ Tax Software Provider-TSP

» (Gcash/PayMaya/MyEG) #

This is a system-generated email. Please do not reply.
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January 2018 (ENCS) v2
Page 2

Annual Income Tax Return

Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-Individual Taxpayer EXEMPT

under the Tax Code, as Amended, [Sec. 30 and those exempted in Sec.
27(C)] and Other Special Laws, with NO Other Taxable Income

Page 1 of 1
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1702-EX 01/18ENCS v2 P2

Registered Name
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?{AZAMA GRAMEEN (KGH) MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA) iN

Part IV - Computation of Tax

(Do NOT enler Centavos; 49 centavos
or less drop down, 50 or more round up)

28 Sales/Receipts/Revenues/Fees

29 Less: Sales Returns, Allowances and Discounts

|30 Net Sales/Receipts/RevenuesiFees (ifem 28 less ltem 29)
|31 Less: Cost of Sales/Services

132 Gross Income from Operation (tem 30 Less ftem 31)

33 Add: Other Income

|34 Total Gross Income (Sum of ltems 32 and 33)

Less: Deduclions Allowable under Existing Law
A. ltemized Deduction

35 Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions {From Part Vi Schedule | item 18)

36 Special Allowable temized Deductions (From Pas Vi Scheule If liem 5)
37 Total ltemized Deductions (Sum of items 35 and 36)
B. Optional Standard Deduction (0SD)
38 OSD (40% of item 34)(applicable to GPP per RA No. 10963)
39 Net Taxable Income / (Loss) (If llemized: ftem 34 Less item 37.) if OSD: llem 34 Less ltem 38)
40 Tax Rate

41 Tax Due (item 39 x ftem 40) {To Part /i ter 18}
Less: Tax Credits / Payments (attach proof)

42 Prior Year's Excess Credits

43 Income Tax Payment from Previous Quarter/s

44 Credilable Tax Withheld from Previous Quarter/s per BIR Form No. 2307
45 Creditable Tax Withheld per BIR Form No. 2307 for the 4th Quarier

46 Foreign Tax Credits, if applicable

47 Tax Paid in Retumn Previously Filed, if this is an Amended Return
Other Tax Credits / Payments (specify)
48 | '

11,458513.00

a0

11,458,513.00

6.417,272.00

5,041,241.00

Q.00

5,041,241.00

1

i

A
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} ) 5,823,140.00

000
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i 5,825,140.00
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-781,899.00
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50 Total Tax Credits / Payments (Sum of ltems g? to 43) {To Part {! ftem 19)

51 Total (Overpayment) (item 41 Less item 50) (To Part If ifem 20)

Part V - Tax Relief Availment

52 Regular income Tax Otherwise Due (ftem 39 of Part IV x Applicable income Tax Rate)
53 Special Allowable itemized Deductions (ftem 36 of Part IV x Applicable Income Tax Rate}

54 Total Tax Relief Availment (Sum of ltems 52 and 53)
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Rl ket I Annual Income Tax Return ks
1 702'Ex Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-Individual Taxpayer EXEMPT : 'l .

January 2018 (ENCS) v2 under the Tax Code, as Amended, [Sec. 30 and those exempted in Sec.

Page 3 27(C)] and Other Special Laws, with NO Other Taxable income 1702-EX 01/18ENCS v2 P3
'Lax _lqanir_ﬂt_:‘atlpn Nuglmbef_ (TIN) Registered Name
ibb’é """ §1_ - - e %552 g0 ?Zm"'mﬁﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁﬁéf)'RT\J"f‘U‘A‘Ifﬁ‘éﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁé"soc""ﬂﬁﬁﬁ“(ﬁ@mm‘" SR e
1 ]
Part VI - Schedules {Do NOT enter Centavos; 49 centavos

o less drop down; 50 or more round up)

IScheduIe 1 - Ordinary Allowable Hemized Deductions (attach additional sheet/s, if necessary)

1 Ammortizations i 0.00
2 Bad Debts [“‘“‘ 0160
3 Charitable and Conlributions 0.00

!

4 Depletion i [}
5 Depreciation [ il 174,773.00
8 Entertainment, Amusement and Recreation i 0.00
7 Fringe Benefits i 0.00
8 Interest [ 0.00
9 Losses i S 0.00
10 Pension Trusts i’ 0.00
11 Rental [" 240,000.00
12 Research and Development ; 0.00
13 Salaries, Wages, and Allowances ;’“Nmmm_ T3 T 8800
14 588, GSIS, Philhealth, HDMF, and Other Conlributions I 191,701.00
15 Taxes and Licenses % I 135,458.00
18 Transpartation and Travel i 0.00
17 Others (Deductions Subject to Withholding Tax and Other Expenses) [Specify below; Add additional sheet(s) if necessary] ) e

a  Janilorial and Messengerial Services E Q.00

b Professional Fees

¢ Security Services

d ﬁf‘ﬁéﬁ'éﬁlovee BENEFITS f

® ;PROFESSIONAL AND TECHNICAL DEVELOPMENT . E 563,699.00
f ﬁi‘ﬁm‘ﬁ \ND CONFERENCE T L S B { T 508,242 00
g ﬁé‘ﬁﬁé‘s&nm'ﬂéﬁ { e e T LT
h ]%“IE;‘&ELLANEOUS SSEEAA E T 635,085.00
: {w SN S AR i_..-m, s

18 Total Ordinary A Itemized Daductions (Sum of llems 1 to 17i) (To Part IV lem 35} r T s 823,140.60
{Schedule 2 - Special Allowable ltemized Deductions (attach addilional sheel’s, if necessary)
_ Description : Legal Basis Amount
S e ! i s
1 { , B . ! i 0.00
2 | ! f 60
3 { T & ;"" [ 000
id i | 0.00
§ Total Special Allowable Itemized Deductions jsum ottems 11a 5 (To Part 1V Jtern 36} [ 080
IScheuule 3 - Reconciliation of Net Income per Books Against Taxable Income (attach additional sheet/s. if necessary)
1 Net Income(ioss) per Books lr“ N EXC T
Add: Non-Deductible Expenses/Other Income
2 plscsLﬁﬁ'&'oTJs“ﬁﬁEﬂ's‘éfiéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé“ TR

229,117.00

3 Pﬁ"ﬁ‘\ﬁéﬁiﬁ"ﬁb‘ﬁi’ﬁ&‘éﬁ'&‘ﬁ& B I o T 0

4 Total (Sum of tems 1o 3) ! ) 3,023 86400
Less: A) Non-Taxable Income and Income Subjected to Final Tax

5 ?WESTWH‘EH‘I’" NCOME A R ! R 2.965,725,00

6 'fﬁ(fv?éTﬁ'bT FOR PERCENTAGE TAX 77— r""'""'""”“’""‘ TUTTTTTTRA0.038.00

B) Special Deductions

7

8

|

9 Total (Sum of ltems 5 to 8

10 Net Taxable Income/{Loss) (tem 4 Less lfem 9) 781,899.00
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KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(A Nonstock, Not-for-Profit Association)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024 and 2023
with Report of Independent Auditor



KGI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC.
Block 12 Lot 25 Sta. Mohica Subdivision, Subic, Zambales
Telefax No, (047) 232-1871 Email: kgi_mba@yahoo.com

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Commissioner
Bureau of Internal Revenue
Quezon City

The Management of Kazama Grameen (KGI) Mutual Benefit Association (KGI-MBA) Inc. (@ Non-
stock, Not-for profit Association) is responsible for all information and representations contained in the
Annual Income Tax Returns for the year ended December 31, 2024, Management is likewise responsible
for all information and representations contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual
Income Tax Return covering the same reporting period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible for all
information and representations contained in all the other tax retums filed for the reporting period,
including, but not limited, to the value added tax and / or percentage tax returns, withholding tax returns,
documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax returns.

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2024, and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Returns are in accordance with the books
and records of Kazama Grameen (KGI) Mutual Benefit Association (KGI-MBA) Inc. (a Non-stock,
Not-for praofit Association) complete and correct in all material respects. Management likewise affirms that:

a) the Annual Income Tax Returns has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other issuances of
the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the. income tax return
pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and maintained in the
company’s books and records in accordance with the requirements of Revenue Regulations No. 8-
2007 and other relevant issuances;

¢) the Kazama G‘rameen (KGI) Mutual Benefit Association (KGI-MBA) Inc. {a Non-stock, Not-
Jor profit Association) has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements required to be
filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions shown
thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those contested in
good faith.

%uibm“"’ M-‘O %ubcu\:f‘

CATHERINE B. UBANA LETICIA C. CASTILLO CATHERINE B. UBANA
Chairman Chief Financial Officer President




#=*%  KGIMUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC.
§ <y ‘ Block 12 Lot 25 Sta. Monica Subdivision, Subic, Zambales
Telefax No. {047) 232-1871 Email: kgi_mba@yahoo.com

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 25th day of April 2025. Affiants
exhibited to me their respective identification cards, as follows:

Name ID/No:
Catherine B. Ubana Driver’s License #C07-15-020569

Leticia C. Castillo SSS ID#33-0192827-3

NOTARY PUBLIC

NO Z. FLORESTA
DORENTINO Z L

Dac No, 357 Until December 31,2026
PageNo. 7 2. Notarial Commi:;:sl::;nzf“::;‘zb(;?:; g

y Olangapo Wity £
Bodk, BF A N0, 9422110/1-6-2025
Series of 2025 18P No. 383342/1-4-2028

Roll of Attorney No. 24253
2228 Rizal Ave, E.B.

B.. Olongapo City
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6815 Ayala Avenue North
1226 Makati City, Philippines

Phone: +63 (2) 8894-5783
+63 (2) 8893-1509
Fax: +63 (2) 8894-4793
E-mail: mercado_cpa@yahoo.com
Website: mamercado.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members and the Board of Trustees
Kazama Grameen (KGI)

Mutual Benefit Association (KGI-MBA) Inc.
Lot 25, Block 12, Sta. Monica Subdivision
Subic, Zambales

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Kazama Grameen (KGI) Mutual Benefit
Association (KGI-MBA) Inc. (a Non-stock, Not-for-profit Association) (the Association),
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and
the related statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of
changes in members’ equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Kazama Grameen (KGI) Mutual Benefit Association (KGI-
MBA) Inc., as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Association in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the



i MAM & Co.

‘.",' Assurance * Tax Advisory * Business Process

Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

M. A. MERCADO & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

M. A. MERCADO & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue
Regulations 15-2010 in Note 22 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing
with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of the management of
Kazama Grameen (KGI) Mutual Benefit Association (KGI-MBA) Inc. and has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In
our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

M. A. MERCADO & CO.

ARCELINO A%ADO

rtner

PA License No. 066885
Tax Identification No. 102-921-222
P.T.R. No. 10471448; Issued on January 9, 2025, Makati City
BOA Accreditation No. 5658/P-001
Issued on December 19, 2023; Valid until November 20, 2026
SEC Accreditation No. 66885-SEC (Group B)
Issued on January 25, 2022
Valid until 2025 Financial Statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-006173-001-2025
Issued on March 12, 2025; Valid until March 12, 2028
IC Accreditation No. 66885-1C (Group A)
Issued on January 26, 2021
Valid until 2024 Financial Statements of IC covered institutions
Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 5658
Issued on December 19, 2023; Valid until November 20, 2026
Firm’s SEC Accreditation No. 5658-SEC (Group B)
Issued on January 25, 2022
Valid until 2025 Financial Statements of SEC covered institutions
Firm’s BIR Accreditation No. 08-006173-000-2021
Issued on March 5, 2024; Valid until March 5, 2027
Firm’s IC Accreditation No. 5658-1C (Group A)
Issued on January 26, 2021
Valid until 2024 Financial Statements of IC covered institutions

April 14, 2025

M. A. MERCADO & Co.
Certified Public Accountants



KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI) MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA) INC.

(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

Notes 2024 2023
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2,4 12,657,219 14,377,220
Short-term investments 2:9 12,629,990 14,124,632
Financial assets 2,3,6
Held-to-maturity (HTM) investments 31,301,235 30,580,918
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 6,374,107 6,106,856
Loans and receivables 13,403,289 10,326,001
Property and equipment 2,3,7 1,044,612 141,385
Prepayments and other assets 2,8 380,813 912,570
77,791,265 76,569,582
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilitites
Insurance contract liabilities 2,9 23,297,467 35,781,742
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,10 13,582,147 2,151,834
36,879,614 37,933,576
Fund Balance
Appropriated fund balance 20 20,940,632 28,945,997
Unappropriated fund balance 20 19,971,019 9,690,009
40,911,651 38,636,006
77,791,265 76,569,582

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI) MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA) INC.

(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Notes 2024 2023
REVENUES
Premiums on insurance contracts 2,11 P 11,455,987 P 11,593,600
Investment and other income 2,12 2,965,725 1,643,400
Miscellaneous income 2,13 842,564 3,343,565
TOTAL REVENUE 15,264,276 16,580,565
BENEFITS, CLAIMS, AND EXPENSES
Gross insurance contract benefits and claims paid 15 6,412,298 8,857,840
Gross change in insurance contract liabilities (581,604) (2,669,428)
Collection fees 586,578 594,590
6,417,272 6,783,002
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 14 6,052,256 5,456,806
TOTAL COSTS AND OPERATING EXPENSES 12,469,528 12,239,808
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES
BEFORE PROVISION FOR TAX 2,794,748 4,340,757
PROVISION FOR FINAL TAX 16 519,103 134,064
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR P 2,275,645 P 4,206,693

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI) MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA) INC.

(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31

Notes 2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before provision for final tax 2,794,748 P 4,340,756
Adjustments for:
Interest income 2 (3,217,577) (1,394,165)
Amortization 2,3,6 481,317 953,082
Depreciation 23,7 171,773 63,425
Fair value loss (gain) on financial assets
through profit or loss 2,36 267,251 (249,235)
Reversal of provision for probable losses - -
Cash generated from operations before working capital
changes 497,512 3,713,863
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Loans and receivables 2,3,6 (3,077,288) (2,247,745)
Prepayments and other assets 2.8 531,757 (85,003)
Increase (decrease) in:
Insurance contract liabilities 2,9 (12,484,275) (2,619,273)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,10 11,430,313 (2,582,118)
Cash provided by operations (3,101,981) (3,820,276)
Final taxes paid (534,502) (134,064)
Net cash provided by operating activities (3,636,483) (3,954,340)
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from:
Short-term investments 2,3,6 1,494,642.00 15,182,049
Maturities of HTM investments 23,6 30,962,366.00 15,182,049
Acquisitions/availments of:
Short-term investments 2,36 & s
Held-to-maturity (HTM) investments 2,3,6 (32,164,000) (30,903,049)
Property and equipment 2,3,7 (1,075,000) (75,590)
Financial assets at FVPL 2,3,6 - =
Interest received; net of final tax 2 2,698,474 1,383,428
Net cash used in investing activities 1,916,482 768,887
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,720,001) (3,185,453)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,4 14,377,220 17,562,673
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 12,657,219 P 14,377,220

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



Kazama Grameen (KGI)

Mutual Benefit Association (KGI-MBA) Inc.
(A Non-stock, Not-for profit Association)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kazama Grameen (KGI) Mutual Benefit Association (KGI-MBA) Inc. (a Non-stock,
Not-for profit Association) (“the Association”) was registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) as a non-stock, not-for-profit association on September 23,
2011, with SEC Registration No. CN201117039.

The Association obtained its license to offer life and health insurance to all its members on
March 14, 2012. The Association focused on the campaign and information dissemination
of its insurance products to branches, members and employees. Subsequently, the Insurance
Commission (IC) approved the Association’s Implementing Rules and Regulations
governing benefits under the Certificate of Membership to members or their beneficiaries.

It was granted a license by the IC on January 1, 2019 to engage as a mutual benefit
association that extends microinsurance benefits and services for the welfare and financial
security of its members and their families. The Association actively involves the members
in the direct management of the Association including the implementation of policies and
procedures geared towards sustainability and improved services. The license of the
Association is valid until December 31, 2024.

The Association is a non-stock, not-for-profit entity that no part of the income, which the
Association may obtain as an incident to its operations, shall be distributed as dividends to
its members, trustees or officers subject to the provisions of the Corporation Code on
dissolution. Any profit obtained by the Association as aresult of its operations, whenever
necessary or proper shall be used for the furtherance of its purposes.

As a non-stock, not-for-profit and mutual benefit association, the Bureau of Internal
Revenue (BIR) accords tax-exempt status to these corporations and associations with
respect to income and value-added taxes as provided under the National Internal Revenue
Code of 1997 as amended by Republic Act 8424 known as the Comprehensive Tax Reform
Program by the Bureau of Internal Revenue.

As of April 15,2024, the Association has not yet secured a BIR ruling or Certificate of Tax
Exemption.

The registered office address of the Association is Block 12, Lot 25, Sta. Monica
Subdivision, Subic Zambales.

The Board of Trustees of the Association has reviewed and approved the release of the
accompanying financial statements on April 15, 2024.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The more significant accounting policies and practices of the Association are summarized
below to facilitate the understanding of data presented in the financial statements.



KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) and interpretation, which have been approved by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), including SEC pronouncements.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), which have been measured at
fair value. The Association’s financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which
is the functional and presentation currency under PFRS. All values are rounded to the
nearest peso except as otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Association’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Association have been prepared in compliance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Fair Value Measurement
The Association measures financial instruments at fair value at each financial position date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Association.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

e Level 3- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs)

Changes in Accounting Policies

The following explains the significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the
preparation of the financial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements, except for the changes in accounting policies as
explained below.

New and Amended Standards Adopted by the Association

Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
The amendments clarify:
¢ That only covenants with which an entity must comply on or before reporting
date will affect a liability’s classification as current or non-current.
¢ That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its
deferral right.
e That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity
instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification.

The adoption of this amendment, effective January 1, 2024, did not have a material
impact on the Association’s Financial Statements.

IFRS 16, Leases

In September 2022, the IASB issued amendments to [FRS 16 Leases to add
subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy
the requirements in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be accounted
for as a sale. The amendments require a seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease
liabilities arising from a leaseback in a way that it does not recognize any amount of
the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The adoption of this amendment, effective January 1, 2024, did not have a material
impact on the Association’s Financial Statements.

Amendments to PAS 7 and PFRS 7, Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments specify disclosure requirements to enhance the current requirements,
which are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the effects
of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to
liquidity risk.

11



KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC,
(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The adoption of this amendment, effective January 1, 2024, did not have a material
impact on the Company’s Financial Statements.

Standards Issued but not vet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated,
the Company does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will
have a significant impact on its financial statements. The Association intends to adopt the
following pronouncements when these become effective.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025 onwards

PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of
IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully
represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial
statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows. IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and
applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Through IC Circular Letter (CL) No. 2020-62, the adoption of PFRS 17 was deferred
from January 1, 2023, to January 2025.

IC then issues IC Circular Letter No. 2025-04 further extending the adoption of PFRS
17. All companies shall adopt PFRS 17 in their AFS for submission to the SEC
effective January 1, 2027. However, companies are allowed to adopt PFRS 17 in their
AFS beginning January 1, 2025.

The Association is currently assessing the impact of the amendments in the financial
statements of the Association.

Amendments to PAS 21, Lack of exchangeability

On 15 August 2023, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued
Lack of Exchangeability which amended IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates (the Amendments). The Amendments introduce requirements to
assess when a currency is exchangeable into another currency and when it is not. The
Amendments require an entity to estimate the spot exchange rate when it concludes
that a currency is not exchangeable into another currency.

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2025. The Association is currently assessing the impact of adopting these
amendments.

Amendments to PFRS 9, Lessee Derecognition of Lease Liabilities and Transaction
Price

The IASB’s amendments remove the conflict between IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 over the
amount at which a trade receivable is initially measured. Under IFRS 15, a trade
receivable may be recognized at an amount that differs from the transaction price —
e.g. when the transaction price is variable. Conversely, IFRS 9 requires that

12



KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

companies initially measure trade receivables without a significant financing
component at the transaction price. The IASB has amended IFRS 9 to require
companies to initially measure a trade receivable without a significant financing
component at the amount determined by applying IFRS 15.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026. Earlier application is permitted. The Association is currently assessing the
impact of adopting these amendments.

Amendments to PFRS 10, Determination of a 'De Facto Agent’

Amends paragraph B74 of IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ to use less
conclusive language and to clarify that the relationship described in paragraph B74 is
just one example of a circumstance in which judgement is required to determine
whether a party is acting as a de facto agent.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026. Earlier application is permitted. The Association is currently assessing the
impact of adopting these amendments.

Amendments to PAS 7, Cost Method ‘
Amends paragraph 37 of IAS 7 to replace the term ‘cost method’ with ‘at cost’.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026. Earlier application is permitted. The Association is currently assessing the
impact of adopting these amendments.

Annual Improvements to PFRS Accounting Standards-Volume 11

Amendments to PFRS 1, Hedge Accounting by a First-time Adopter
The amendments modified paragraphs B5-B6 of IFRS 1:

e to improve consistency with the requirements in IFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’, and

¢ to add cross-references to improve the understandability of IFRS 1.
The Association is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

Amendments to PFRS 7, Gain or Loss on Derecognition
The amendments modified paragraph B38 of IFRS 7.
e to replace an obsolete reference to paragraph 27A of IFRS 7 with a reference
to paragraphs 72—73 of IFRS 13 ’Fair Value Measurement’, and
e to replace the phrase ‘inputs that were not based on observable market data’

with ‘unobservable inputs’ to make the wording consistent with the wording in
paragraph 72 of IFRS 13.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

In May 2024, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9 and [FRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures which clarify the derecognition of a financial liability settled
through electronic transfer and introduces an accounting policy option to derecognize
a financial liability settled through electronic transfer before the settlement date, if

13



KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

specific criteria are met. The amendments additionally clarify the classification of
financial assets with environmental, social and corporate governance and similar
features and also required additional disclosures for certain financial instruments. The
amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2026. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively.

The Association is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements ("IFRS 18")

In April 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements ("IFRS 18") which replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
IFRS 18 introduces new requirements on presentation within the statement of profit or
loss, disclosure of management defined performance measures, and principles for
aggregation and disaggregation of financial information in the financial statements
and the notes. IFRS 18 will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2027. IFRS 18 is to be applied retrospectively.

The Association is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

PFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability
IFRS 19 specifies reduced disclosure requirements that an eligible entity is permitted
to apply instead of the disclosure requirements in other IFRS Accounting Standards.

IFRS 19 was issued in May 2024 and applies to an annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2027. The Association is currently assessing the impact of
adopting these amendments.

Deferred effectivity

Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with
the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint
venture. The amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer
to an associate or joint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or
loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a
business, however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests in
the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original
effective date of January 1,2016 of the said amendments until the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) completes its broader review of the research
project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for
such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments,
with PFRS 4

14



KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The
amendments introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary
exemption from applying PFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is
first applied for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. An entity may
elect the overlay approach when it first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach
retrospectively to financial assets designate on transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates
comparative information reflecting the overlay approach if, and only if, the entity restates
comparative information when applying PFRS 9.

Qualifying for temporary exemption from PFRS 9

The Association applies the temporary exemption from PFRS 9 as permitted by the
amendments to PFRS 4 Applying PFRS 9 Financial Instruments with PFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts. The temporary exemption permits the Association to continue applying PAS 39
rather than PFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before January 1, 2025.

The assessment for whether a reporting entity’s activities are predominantly connected with
insurance is based on the liabilities connected with insurance in proportion to the entity’s
total liabilities. An entity may elect the temporary exemption if, and only if:

- The carrying amount of its liabilities arising from contracts within the scope of PFRS
4 is significant compared to the total carrying amount of all its liabilities; and
- The percentage of the total carrying amount of its liabilities connected with insurance
relative to the total carrying amount of all of its liabilities is:
a. Greater than 90 percent; or
b. Less than or equal to 90 percent but greater than 80 percent, and the insurer
does not engage in a significant activity unconnected with insurance.

Applying the requirements, the Association performed the predominance assessment using
the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2015 and concluded that it qualified
for the temporary exemption from PFRS 9. Since December 31, 2015, there has been no
change in the activities of the Association that requires reassessment of the use of the
temporary exemption.

Fair value disclosures

The table below represents an analysis of the fair value of classes of financial assets of the
Association as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, as well as the corresponding change in fair
value for the year then ended. The financial assets are divided into two categories:

- Assets for which their contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI), excluding any financial assets that are held for trading or that are
managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis; and

- All financial assets other than those specified in SPPI above (i.e. those for which
contractual cash flows do not represent SPPI, assets that are held for trading and assets
that are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis).



KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(4 Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2024
SPPI financial assets Other financial assets
Fair value Fair value
Fair value change  Fair value change
Cash P 12,633,065 P - i - P -
Short-term inves tments 12,629,990 - - -
Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss - - 6,374,107 267,251
Held-to-maturity inves tments 31,301,235 - - -
Loans and receivables 13,403,289 - - -
P 69,967,579 P - P6374,107 P 267,251
2023
SPPI financial assets Other financial assets
Fair value Fair value
Fair value change Fair value change
Cash P 14,358,996 P P - P
Short-term investments 14,124,632 - -
Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss - - 6,106,856 570,235
Held-to-maturity investments 30,580,918 - - -
Loans and receivables 10,326,001 - - -
P 69,390,547 P - P 610685 P 570235

Credit risk disclosures
The following table shows the carrying amounts of the SPPI assets in accordance with PAS
39 categories by credit risk rating grades reported to key management personnel. The
carrying amounts are measured in accordance with PAS 39. For assets measured at
amortized cost, the carrying amount shown is before any allowance for impairment loss.

2024
Credit Rating
Total AAA ANA BBB BB/B Unrated

Cash and cash equivalents P 12,633,005 P 12,3305 # - ¢ . P - P -
Short-term investments 12,629,990 12,629,990 - -
Held-to-maturity investments 31,301,235 31,301,235 - - - .
Loans and receivables 13,403,289 - . - - 13,403,289

P 69967579 P 36564290 P - P - P - P 13403280
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MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)
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2023
Credit Rating
Total AAA AA/A BBB BB/B Unrated

Cash and cash equivalents P 1438997 14388997 ¢ -~ £ - B - P
Short-term investments 14124632 14,124,632
Held-to-maturity investments 30,580,918 30,580,918 - - . -
Loans and receivables 10,326,001 - - - . 10,326,001

Poo9390548 P 39064547 B - P - P . P 103001

Financial assets that passed the SPPI test have low credit risk as of December 31, 2024,

Material Accounting Policies

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. These are carmried in the statements of financial
position at face amount. Cash in banks earn interest based on the prevailing bank deposit
rates.

Short-term Investments

Short-term are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturities of more than three months but less than one year
from dates of placement. These earn interests at the respective short-term investment rates.

Financial Instruments

Date of recognition

Financial instruments are recognized in the statement of financial position when the
Association becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration given (in the
case of an asset) or received (in the case of a liability. Except for financial instruments
valued at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), the initial instrument of financial assets
includes transaction costs.

The Association classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: financial
assets or liabilities at FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments (HTM)
and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets and other financial liabilities, as appropriate.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and
whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting
date.

17
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Determination of fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:
e In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Association. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that the market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

e Level 2 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Association determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Association has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Association’s financial instruments are classified
as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial liabilities.

‘Day 1’ difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Association
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ difference)
in the profit or loss. In cases where use is made of data which is not observable, the
difference between transaction price and model value is only recognized in the profit or loss

18
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when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Association determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’
difference amount.

Financial assets

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the end of the reporting
period is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations, without any
deduction for transaction costs. When current market prices are not available, the price of
the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as there has
not been a significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined
by using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value
techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist,
option pricing models, and other relevant valuation models.

Non-financial assets

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the
intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as AFS financial assets
or financial assets at FVPL.

After initial measurement, the loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortization is included in “Interest
income” in profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment of such loans and receivables
are recognized in profit or loss. This accounting policy relates to the Association’s statement
of financial position captions “Cash”, “Short-term investments” and “Loans and
receivables”.

Financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL include financial assets or financial liabilities
held for trading designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling in the near term. Financial assets or financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are so designated only if the
criteria of PAS 39 are satisfied. Gains or losses on assets or liabilities held for trading are
recognized in profit or loss.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Association’s financial assets designated as at FVPL
include investments in unit investment trust fund and guaranty fund. These financial assets
are managed, and their performances are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
the investment strategy.
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HTM investments

HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities for which management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Where the association sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM
investments, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as AFS financial assets.
After initial measurement these investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment in value. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in income when
the HTM investments are derecognized and impaired, as well as through the amortization
process. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the
statement of income.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Association’s HTM investments consist of
government securities.

Other financial liabilities

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL are
classified as other financial liabilities. The substance of the contractual arrangement results
in the Association having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to
the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity shares.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on the issue and fees that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate. Any effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities are
recognized in the statement of income.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Association’s other financial liabilities consist of
claims payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities.

Classification of Financial Instruments between Debt and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as debt if it provides for a contractual obligation to:
e deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
e exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavorable to the Association; or
e satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of equity shares.

If the Association does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another
financial asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a
financial liability.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity
elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the
residual amount, after deducting from the instrument as a whole, the amount separately
determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.

20



KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Profit Association)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Association assesses that it has a currently
enforceable right of offset if the right is not contingent on a future event and is legally
enforceable in the normal course of business, event of default, and event of insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Association and all of the counterparties.

Impairment of Financial Assets

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is objective evidence that
a specific financial asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at
amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original EIR (i.e., the EIR computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset
shall be reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Association first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that
the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that
is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

o the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

e the Association retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass
through’ arrangement; or

e the Association has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and
either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Association has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Association’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Association could be required to

repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the Association’s statement of comprehensive income.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
in value. The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
taxes and directly attributable cost to bring the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the fixed assets have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance are normally charged to income in the period in
which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditures have resulted in an increase in future economic benefits expected to obtain
from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard
of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property and
equipment.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
(EUL) of the assets as follows:

Years
Office furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipment 5
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Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no
further charge for depreciation is made with respect to these assets.

The useful life and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
period and the method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benefits from items of property and equipment.

The carrying values of the property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts,
an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

At each reporting date, the Association assesses whether there is any indication that its non-
financial assets may be impaired. When an indicator or impairment exists or when an annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Association makes a formal estimate of
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s cash generating unit
(CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as
part of the CGU to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount of an asset (or CGU)
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or CGU) is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or CGU).

An impairment loss is charged to operations in the year in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is charged to the
revaluation increment of the said asset.

For the nonfinancial assets, excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting
date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. The increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such areversal, the depreciation expense
is adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual
value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Fund Balance
Fund balance represents accumulated excess of revenue over expenses of the Association.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized upon transfer of services to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.

Gross Premiums on Insurance Contracts

Premiums are recognized when collected. When premiums are recognized, actuarial
liabilities are computed, with the result that benefits and expenses are matched with such
revenue. The Association receives its premiums through KGI-MBA which is acting as a
collecting institution.

Interest income

Interest on interest-bearing placements is accrued using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method.

Other income
Income from other sources is recognized when earned.

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities are recognized when the contracts are entered into and the
premiums are recognized. The Association accumulates and maintains, out of the periodic
member’s contribution and premiums collected as equity value reserves of 50% of the total
member’s contributions collected thereon. Valuation standards for life insurance policy
reserves require all life insurance companies to calculate the reserves for traditional life
insurance policies with a term of one year or less using unearned premium method.

Liability Adequacy Test

Liability adequacy tests are performed annually to ensure the adequacy of the insurance
contract liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual
cash flows, claims handling and policy administration expenses are used. Any deficiency is
immediately charged against the statement of comprehensive income initially by
establishing a provision for losses arising from the liability adequacy tests.

Claim Costs

Liabilities for unpaid claim costs and loss adjustment expenses relating to insurance
contracts are accrued when insured events occur. The liabilities for unpaid claims, including
those for incurred but not reported losses, are based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling
the claims. The method of determining such estimates and establishing reserves are
continually reviewed and updated. Changes in estimates of claim costs resulting from the
continuous review process and differences between estimates and payments for claims are
recognized as income or expense in the period when the estimates are changed or payments
are made.

Expense Recognition

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity,
other than those relating to distributions to equity participants.
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Benefits and claims

Life insurance claims reflect the cost of all claims arising during the year, including claims
handling costs. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications
received. Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when due. Benefits recorded are
then accrued as liabilities.

Claims handling costs include internal and external costs incurred in connection with the
negotiation and settlement of claims. Internal costs include all direct expenses of the claims
department and any part of the general and administrative expenses directly attributable to
the claims function.

General and Administrative Expenses
Expenses consist of costs of administering the business. These are recognized as expenses
as incurred.

Leases

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Association applies recognition exemption to lease payments on short-term lease of
office space (i.e. lease term ends within 12 months). Lease payments on short-term leases
assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when an obligation (legal or constructive) is incurred as result of
a past event and where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed

unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post-year-end events that provide additional information about the Association’s position at
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when
material.

3.

MANAGEMENT’S USE OF JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the
Association to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and
contingent liabilities. Future events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in
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arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in
the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Judgment

HTM investments

The Association classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities as HTM investments. This classification requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Association evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Association fails to keep these investments to
maturity other than in certain specific circumstances, the Association will be required to
reclassify the entire portfolio as AFS financial assets and to measure these at fair value and
not at amortized cost. The Association has HTM investments amounting to £31.30 million
and P30.58 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively (see Note 6).

Leases

The Association does not recognize right-of-use (ROU) asset and lease liability. In
accordance with PFRS 16, Leases, the Association applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term lease agreement for its head office (i.e. lease that has a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and does not contain a purchase
option). The renewal option for the existing lease is not included as part of the lease term
because the renewal is subject to mutual agreement of both the lessor and the Association.

Estimates

Estimation of member’s equity value

The Association is required to put up a reserve liability not lower than the equity value of
all in-force, active member certificates as at the end of each calendar year. Hence, the
Association sets up the 50% of its gross premium collection as its reserves for member’s
equity.

Estimation of incurred but not reported claims

Incurred but not reported claims is the sum of individual claims on membership certificates
that have already occurred but notice has not been received by the Association as of
reporting date. The Association computes the IBNR claims by getting the average number
of days to settle the claim multiplied by the average actual claims paid during year.
Estimation of basic contingent benefit reserves The Association estimates basic contingent
benefit reserves for payment of claims or obligations computed on the basis of a prudent
prospective actuarial valuation method. The assumptions used are based on the 17.5% of
total contributions for the month of December each year. This is based on mortality,
disability and morbidity rate assumptions. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
Association’s basic contingent benefit reserves amounted to P2,473 and P64,796,
respectively (see Note 9).

Estimation of optional benefit reserves

Optional benefit reserves pertain to unearned premium reserves. Premiums from short-
duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the contracts
using the 24th method. The portion of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired
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periods of the policies at reporting date are accounted for as optional benefit reserves and
presented as part of “Insurance contract liabilities” in the liabilities section of the statement
of financial position. The change in the optional benefit reserves is taken to profit or loss
in the order that revenue is recognized over the period ofrisk.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Association’s optional benefit reserves amounted
to 672,359 (CLIP: 163,651 and HAPI: P508,708) and P154,230, respectively. (see Note
9).

Impairment of nonfinancial assets
The Association assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The
factors that the Association considers important, which could trigger an impairment review,
include the following:
e significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future
operating results;
e significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for
overall business; and
e significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Association recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets
or, if it is not possible, for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In 2024 and 2023, no impairment loss has been recognized for the Association’s property
and equipment. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the carrying value of property and
equipment amounted to 1,044,612 and P141,385, respectively. (see Note 7)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists:

2024 2023
Cash on hand P 24,154 P 18,224
Cash in banks and cash equivalents 12,633,065 14,358,996
P 12,657,219 P 14,377,220

Cash on hand includes petty cash fund and undeposited collections at year end.

Cash in banks earns interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash in banks earned
interest of nil to 0.25% in 2024 and 2023. Interest income earned from cash in banks
amounted to 2,191 and P4,403 in 2024 and 2023, respectively. (see Note 12)

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments are money market placements with maturity of more than 3 months
to 1 year and bear annual interest rates that ranged from 0.125% to 0.750% in 2024 and
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2023. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 the Association’s short-term investments
amounted to £12.63 million and P14.12 million, respectively. Interest income earned from
these investments amounted to 49,338 and £160,899 in 2024 and in 2023, respectively.
(see Note 12)

. FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Association’s financial assets are summarized by measurement categories as follow:

2024 2023
Financial assets at FVPL i 4 6,374,107 ? 6,106,856
HTM investments 31,301,235 30,580,918
Loans and receivables - net 13,403,289 10,326,001
P 51,078,631 P 47,013,775

The assets included in each of the categories above are detailed below:

a) Financial assets at FVPL On August 13, 2018, the Association entered into a
Participating Trust Agreement with Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) as investment
manager of Bayanihan balanced fund. The Bayanihan balanced fund is a balanced Unit
Investment Trust Fund (UITF) with 5.00% to 20.00% equities exposure that intends to
achieve long term capital growth derived from a diversified portfolio of equity and fixed
income securities. This account also includes a guaranty fund which pertains to cash
paid by the Association to Microinsurance MBA Association of the Philippines, Inc.
This fund represents a claim reserve held and being managed by MIMAP that will be
subsequently used to satisfy the claims of the Association’s members in case of
insolvency. The fund is being managed by a universal bank and invested in bank
deposits and government securities. The fair value of the guaranty fund amounted to
P463,658 and P443,116 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The
rollforward analysis of financial assets at FVPL follows:

2024 2023
Bayanihan Guaranty Bayanihan  Guaranty
Balanced Fund Fund Total Balanced Fund Fund Total
Balance at beginning of
year P 5,663,740 P 443,116 P6,106856 P 5433862 P 423759 P 5857621
Fair value gain (loss)
(Note 12) 246,709 20,542 267,251 229,878 19,357 249,235

Balance at end of the year 5910449 P 463,658 P6374,107 P 5,663,740 P 443116 P 6,106,356

b) HTM investments

This consists of government securities with aggregate carrying amount of £31.30 million
and P30.58 million as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and which earned
interest at a nominal rate of 1.77% in 2024 and 2023.
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The amortized costs of HTM investments follow:

2024 2023
Fair value o 32,164,000 P 31,925,000
Discount (381,448) (391,000)
Carrying value 31,782,552 31,534,000
Amortization of discount (481,317) (953,082)
Balance at end of'the year P 31,301,235 P 30,580,918
The rollforward analysis of HTM investments follows:
2024 2023
At January 1 P 30,580,918 P 15,813,000
Acquisitions 32,164,000 30,903,049
Maturities (30,962,366) (15,182,049)
Amortization of discount (481,317) (953,082)
Balance at end of the year P 31,301,235 P 30,580,918

Interest earned from HTM investments, including amortization of discount, amounted to
P1,783,061 and P488,750 in 2024 and 2023, respectively. (see Note 12)

¢) Loans and receivables

This account consists of:

2024 2023

Due from KGI Microfinance (KGMI) P 12,670,851 P 10,305,332
Due from microfinance institution (MFI} branches 711,232 -
Interest receivable 21,206 20,669

P 13,403,289 P 10,326,001
The rollforward analysis of Due from KGMI as follows

2024 2023

At January 1 o 10,305,332 ? 7,710,735
Additions 14,000,000 14,500,000
Payments (11,634,481) (11,905,403)

P 12,670,851 P 10,305,332

KGMI entered into a new bridge loan agreement amounting to £10.00 million divided
equally between January and February 2022, with interest of 5.00% per annum. On
December 22, 2022, the Association received payment for the principal amounting to £2.29
million. The remaining balance of KGMI loan amounted to £7.71 million as of December
31, 2023, which is secured by the assignment of KGMI to the Association of certain loans
from its microfinance business (see Note 17).
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KGMI entered into new loan agreements in 2023 amounting to 14.5 million, with interest
of 3% per annum. Also in 2023, the Association received payment for the outstanding loan
amounting to P11.9 million. The remaining balance of the loan amounted to 10.3 million.

KGMI entered into new loan agreements in 2024 amounting to 14.0 million, with interest
of 3% per annum. Also in 2023, the Association received payment for the outstanding loan
amounting to P11.6 million. The remaining balance of the loan amounted to £12.67 million.

Interest earned from the bridge loan contract amounted to P863,884 and $740,112 in 2024
and 2023, respectively (see Note 12).

Due from MFI branches pertain to premiums collected by the branches of KGI from the
Association’s members. These are generally on 1-to-30 day terms.

Interest receivable pertains to interest to be received on the outstanding loan from loan
agreements.

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The roll forward analysis of this account follows:

2024
Office Office Furniture Total
Equipment and Fixtures
Cost
At January 1, 2024 P 1,854,006 P 200,321 P 2,060,327
Additions 1,075,000 = 1,075,000
At December 31,2024 P 2,929,006 P 206,321 P 3,135,327
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization
At January 1, 2024 P 1,716,412 P 202,530 P 1,918,942
Depreciation and amortization
(Note 14) 168,273 3,500 171,773
At December 31,2024 1,884,685 206,030 2,090,715
Net book values P 1,044,321 P 291 P 1,044,612
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2023
Office Office Furniture Total
Equipment and Fixtures
Cost
At January 1, 2023 P 1,778,416 P 206,321 P 1,984,737
Additions 75,590 - 75,590
At December 31,2023 P 1,854,006 P 206,321 P 2,060,327
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization
At Januvary 1, 2023 ig 1,656,487 P 199,030 P 1,855,517
Depreciation and amortization
(Note 14) 59,925 3,500 63,425
At December 31,2023 1,716,412 202,530 1,918,942
Net book values P 137,594 P 3,791 P 141,385

Cost of fully depreciated assets still in use amounted to 2,626,258 and £2,596,258 as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

8. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

This account consists of’

2024 2023
Prepaid expenses g 90,900 £ 730,300
Supplies mventory 38,873 48,855
Others 251,040 133,414

P 380,813 P 912,569

Prepaid expenses pertain to payments made to the Insurance Commission for the renewal
of the Association’s license which is valid for three (3) years and software development
contract.

Supplies inventory consists of unused vouchers, official receipts and membership
certificates.
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9. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

This account consists of*

2024 2023
Liability on individual equity value P 22,099367 P 35,289,520
Optional benefit reserves - CLIP and HAPI 672,359 154,230
Accounts payable - benefit/claims 387,710 -
Claims payable 135,558 273,196
Basic contingent benefit reserves 2473 64,796

23,297,467 P 35,781,742

— S O RS SR ret .

The liability on individual equity represents the entitlement of members for 50% of the
total gross contributions paid. The contributions are invested, and the interests thereon are
credited to the equity value. Interest rate is determined by the BOT and in no case be less
than the prevailing savings rate of the commercial banks. This equity value, inclusive of
interest thereon, is payable upon termination of membership from MBA, including death
or total and permanent disability (as amended on June 23, 2016).

Claims payable consists of the following:

2024 2023
Claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) P 123,558 P 183,196
Claims in course of settlement 12,000 63,000
Claims resisted/denied - 27,000

P 135,558 P 273,196

Basic contingent benefit reserves represent reserves for payment of claims or obligations
computed on the basis of a prudent prospective actuarial valuation method, where the
assumptions used are based on 17.5% of total contribution for the month of December.
Total contributions for the month of December in 2024 and 2023 amounted to 6,210,180
and P333,234, respectively. The decrease in basic contingent benefit reserves charged
against profit or loss amounted to 62,322 and P58,711 in 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The rollforward of BLIP reserve follows:

2024 2023
Balance, beginning of the year P 64,796 P 123,506
Arising (reversal) during the year (62,323) (58,710)

2473 P 64,796

Credit life insurance reserves pertain to the proportion of written premiums attributable to
subsequent periods or to risks that have not yet expired. Premiums from short-duration
insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the contracts using the
24th method. The change in the credit life insurance reserves is taken to profit or loss in the
order that revenue is recognized over the period of risk. Total loans issued by MFI covered
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by credit life insurance premiums amounted to P504.41 million and P504.41 million as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The (decrease) increase in credit life insurance
reserves in the profit or loss amounted to P518,129 and P8,040 in 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Collection fees are those fees charged to the Association by KGI in exchange for collecting
contributions from members. This is 3% of gross basic life insurance premiums and 25%
of credit life insurance gross premiums. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, collection fees
amounted to P586,579 and P594,590, respectively.

10.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

This account consists of®

2024 2023

Accrued expenses and provisions P 13,558,419 P 1,758,885
Payable to government agencies 23,728 392,949
P 13,582,147 P 2,151,834

Accrued expenses and provisions pertain to accrual of audit fee, other post-employment
benefits and provisions recognized for estimated losses on claims by a third party. The
information usually required by PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets is not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice the outcome of
these lawsuits, claims and assessments. Payable to government agencies consists mainly of
withholding taxes on purchases from suppliers as well as statutory contribution of
employees which are subsequently remitted within one month after the reporting date.

11

PREMIUMS ON INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Under the Association’s basic life insurance program, members and its qualified
dependents are entitled to receive a minimum amount of benefit upon death or permanent
disability duly approved by the Association after meeting certain conditions as stated in the
certificate of membership issued to members. The member’s contribution is P30 every
week. Additionally, a member shall be entitled to an equity value (equivalent to 50% of
total gross contributions paid), inclusive of interest thereon, payable upon termination of
membership from the Association. However, a surrender charge equal to 30% of equity
value may be imposed by the association for member’s termination occurring only within
the first three years of membership. Under the Association’s Credit life insurance program,
debtor-members and the creditor-Association are entitled to receive the amount of loan
insured upon death or permanent disability of the member duly approved by the Association
after meeting certain conditions as stated in the policy certificate issued to members. The
member’s contribution is £10.00 per 1,000 of loan per year on a mode of single payment
and the length of coverage is based on the term of the loan. The member’s contribution for
HAPI plan is P20.00 per week.
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Premiums for Basic life and Optional benefit amounted to a total of P11.46 million and
P11.59 million in 2024 and 2023, respectively. Breakdown follows:

2024 2023
Basic Life Insurance Premiums (BLIP) P 6,210,180 P 6,213,100
Optional benefits premium (CLIP and HAPI) 5,245,807 5,380,500
P 11,455,987 P 11,593,600
12. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME - NET
This account consists of’
2024 2023
Interest income from:
Cash in banks (Note 5) P 2,191 P 4,403
Short-term investments (Note 6) 49,338 160,899
HTM investments (Note 6) 1,783,061 488,750
Loans and receivables (Note 6) 863,884 740,112
Fair value gain (loss) on financial assets at FVPL 267,251 249,235
P 2,965,725 P 1,643,399

13. MISCELLANEOUS INCOME
This account consists of income other than those related to premiums and investments.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, other income amounted to P842,564 and P3,343,565,
respectively.
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14. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

This account consists of*

2024 2023
Salaries and allowances P 2,082,827 P 2,110,712
Meetings and seminars 1,597,789 048,432
Technical and professional fees 703,409 727,449
Transportation and travel 466,055 457,525
Membership dues 250,511 265,051
Rent (Note 19) 240,000 240,000
Depreciation (Notes 7) 171,773 63,425
Taxes and licenses (Note 22) 135,458 281,712
Light and water 62,685 56,650
Supplies 11,001 10,824
Social and community service expense - 5,863
Miscellaneous 330,748 289,163
P 6,052,256 P 5,456,806

15. BENEFITS, CLAIMS, AND EXPENSES
This account consists of:

2024 2023

Gross insurance contract benefits and claims paid i 6,412,298 P 8,857,840

Gross change in insurace contract liabilities (581,604) (2,669,428)
Collection fees 586,578 594,590
P 6,417,272 P 6,783,002

16. INCOME TAXES

Provision for income tax consists of final tax from interest income on cash in banks, short
term investments and held-to-maturity investments amounting to 519,103 and 134,063 in
2024 and 2023, respectively (see Note 12).

On March 26, 2021 the Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE)
Act to attract more investments and maintain fiscal prudence and stability in the Philippines.
Republic Act (RA) 11534 or the CREATE Act introduces reforms to the corporate income
tax and incentives systems. It takes effect 15 days after its complete publication in the
Official Gazette or in a newspaper of general circulation or April 11, 2021.

As clarified by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council in its Philippine
Interpretations Committee Q&A No. 2020-07, the CREATE Act was not considered
substantively enacted as of December 31, 2020 even though some of the provisions have
retroactive effect to July 1, 2020. The passage of the CREATE Act into law on March 26,
2021 is considered as a non-adjusting subsequent event. Accordingly, current and deferred
taxes as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 continued to be computed and
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measured using the applicable income tax rates as of December 31, 2020 (i.e., 30% RCIT /
2% MCIT) for financial reporting purposes.

The CREATE Act did not have a significant impact on the financial statements of the
Association as it maintains that it is exempt from income tax with respect to income obtained
as an incident to its operations.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant transactions of related parties consist of premium collections made by the
Microfinance Institution branches of KGI on behalf of the Association and bridge loan
contract with KGMI. Details follow:

2024
Amount/ Outstanding
Category Volume Balance Terms Conditions
Non-interest bearing; Unsecured and
Due from KGMI B 2365519 P 12,670,851 payable on demand  Cash settled
2023
Amount/ Outstanding
Category Volume Balance Terms Conditions
Non-interest bearing;  Unsecured and
Due from MFI branches P 345571 P - payable on demand ~ Cash settled
Non-interest bearing, Unsecured and
Due from KGMI 2,594,597 10,305,332 payable on demand ~ Cash settled
Non-interest bearing;  Unsecured and
Collection fee due to MFI branches 549,590 - payable on demand ~ Cash settled
P 3,489,758 P 10,305,332

Compensation of key management personnel amounted to 1,020,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured, interest-fee if paid when due, otherwise,
interest bearing, and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or
received for any related party receivables or payables.

The Association has not recognized any impairment losses on amount due from related
parties for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, This assessment is undertaken
each financial year through a review of the financial position of the related party and the
market in which the related party operates.
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The Association is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party
transactions provided under RR No. 34-2020.

18.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK

Governance Framework

The Association has established a risk management function with clear terms of reference
and with the responsibility for the developing policies on market, credit, liquidity, insurance
and operational risk. It also supports the effective implementation of policies at the overall
association and individual business unit levels.

The policies define the Association’s identification of risk and its interpretation, limit
structure to ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of assets, alignment of
underwriting and reinsurance strategies to the corporate goals and specify reporting
requirements.

Regulatory Framework

Regulators are interested in protecting the rights of the members and maintain close vigil
to ensure that the Association is satisfactorily managing affairs for the member’s benefit.
At the same time, the regulators are also interested in ensuring that the Association
maintains appropriate solvency position to meet liabilities arising from claims and that the
risk levels are at the acceptable levels.

The operations of the Association are subject to the regulatory requirements of the IC. Such
regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain
restrictive provisions (e.g., margin of solvency to minimize the risk of default and
insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet the unforeseen liabilities as these
arise, minimum guaranty fund, risk-based capital requirements).

Guaranty fund

As a mutual benefit association, the IC also requires the Association to possess a guaranty
fund of P5.00 million. This minimum amount shall be maintained at all times and it must
be increased by an amount equivalent to 5% of the Association’s gross premium
collections. The Association appropriated a guaranty fund amounting to 572,799 and
579,680 during 2024 and 2023, respectively. In 2024 and 2023, the Association reversed
an appropriation amounting to P4,750 and P4,750, respectively.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Association has a total guaranty fund of £17.32
million and 16.74 million, respectively, representing guaranty fund which is deposited
with the [C. The guaranty fund is presented under “Appropriated fund balance” in the
statements of financial position.

Distribution to Members

Per IC Circular Letter 2015-46, a mutual benefit association shall only maintain free and
unassigned fund balance of not more than twenty percent (20%) of its total liabilities as
verified by the IC.

Appropriation made for the year 2024 amounted to nil and P7.59 million for the year 2023.
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The Association distributed benefits in-kind to all its active members amounting to
P996,199 and P42,300 in 2024 and 2023, respectively, from the Association’s surplus
approved and verified by the Insurance Commission. The balance of appropriated fund
balance for allocation to members amounted to P3.62 million and P12.21 million as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Risk-based capital requirements (RBC2)

On December 8, 20006, the IC issued IMC No. 11-2006, adopting the RBC framework for
the mutual benefit associations to establish the required amounts of capital to be maintained
by entities in relation to their investment and insurance risks. Every mutual benefit
association is annually required to maintain a minimum RBC ratio of 100% and not fail the
trend test. Failure to meet the minimum RBC ratio shall subject the insurance entity to the
corresponding regulatory intervention which has been defined at various levels.

The RBC ratio shall be calculated as members’ equity divided by the RBC requirement
whereas, members’ equity is defined as admitted assets minus all liabilities inclusive of
actuarial reserves and other policy obligations.

The following table shows how the RBC ratio was determined by the Association based on
its calculation:

2024 2023
Total assets P 77,791,265 P 76,569,582
Less: Non-admitted assets 12,800,915 11,221,693
Admitted assets P 64,990,350 P 65,347,889
Total liabilities 36,879,614 37,933,576
Member's equity 28,110,736 27,414,313
Aggregate RBC requirement 834,194 596,241
RBC Ratio 3370% 4598%

The final amount of the RBC ratio can be determined only after the accounts of the
Association have been examined by the IC specifically as to admitted and non-admitted
assets as defined under the same Code.

Loans to Partner Microfinance Institutions (MFI)
Per IC Circular Letter 2016-33, MBAs may be allowed to grant loans to partner MFIs to
finance their lending business to MFI clients, based on the following:

e The MFI/s shall have a P.E.S.O rating not lower than 2.

e The total amount of loans granted by the MBA to all its partner MFIs shall not
exceed 10% of the former’s Total Admitted Assets (TAA) based on the latest
verified financial statements or 20% of the Member’s Equity/Paid-Up Capital of the
partner MFI, whichever is lesser.

e The loan shall be secured by a qualified security enumerated under Section 204 of
the New Insurance Code (RA 10607).

e The loan transaction shall be approved by the Board of Trustees and duly supported
by a notarized loan agreement.

e The loan to partner MFI/s shall be subject to prior approval of the Insurance
Commission.
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e The request for approval shall be accompanied by a risk management plan drawn
up jointly by the MBA and MFI in relation to the administration of the loan.

In 2024 and 2023, the Association granted loans to KGMI amounting to £14.0 million and
P14.50 million, respectively. The total amount of loan that can be granted by the
Association to its partner MFI shall not exceed $£7.31 million (10% of its verified TAA as
of December 31, 2021 amounting to 73.5 million) or P7.71 million (20% of the Member’s
equity/Paid-up capital of the partner MFI amounting to P38.55 million as of December 31,
2021) whichever is lesser.

In 2024 and 2023, the Association breached the IC threshold in its loans to partner KGMI.
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance of the Association’s loans to
KGMI amounted to P12.67 million and P10.31 million, respectively (see Note 6).

The main risks arising from the Association’s financial instruments follow:

Insurance Risk

The principal risk the Association faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims
and benefit payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by
the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid are greater than originally
estimated, and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of
the Association is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance
contracts and geographical areas. The variability of risks is also improved by careful
selection and implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines.

Underwriting risk
Underwriting risk represents the exposure to loss resulting from actual policy experience
adversely deviating from assumptions made in the product pricing. Underwriting risks are
brought about by a combination of the following:
e Mortality risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being
different than expected.
e Morbidity risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder health experience being
different than expected.
e Investment return risk - risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than
expected.
e Expense risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than
expected.
e Policyholder decision risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences
(lapses and surrenders) being different than expected.

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the
Association, type of risk insured and by industry. Undue concentration by amounts could
have an impact on the severity of benefit payments on a portfolio basis.

The Association’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified
in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. Underwriting limits are in place to
enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Association has the right not
to renew individual policies, it can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject the
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payment of fraudulent claims. Insurance contracts also entitle the Association to pursue
third parties for payment of some or all cost. The Association further enforces a policy of
actively managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to
unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Association.

The key assumptions to which the estimation of liabilities is particularly sensitive are as
follows:

Mortality and morbidity rates

Assumptions are based on standard industry and national tables, according to the type of
contract written, reflecting recent historical experience and which are adjusted where
appropriate to reflect the Association’s own experiences. An appropriate but not excessive
prudent allowance is made for expected future improvements.

An increase 1n rates will lead to a larger number of claims and claims could occur sooner
than anticipated, which will increase the expenditure and decrease the funds of the
Association.

Investment return
The weighted average rate of return is derived based on a model portfolio that is assumed
to back liabilities, consistent with the long-term asset allocation strategy. These estimates

are based on current market returns as well as expectations about future economic and
financial developments.

An increase in investment return would lead to a reduction in expenditure and an increase
in the funds of the Association.

Expenses

Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in
force policies and associated overhead expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as
an appropriate expense base, adjusted for expected expense inflation adjustments if
appropriate. An increase in the level of expenses would result in an increase in expenditure
thereby reducing the funds of the Association.

Lapse and surrender rates

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to nonpayment of premiums. Surrenders
relate to the voluntary termination of policies by policyholders. Policy termination
assumptions are determined using statistical measures based on Association’s experience
and vary by product type, policy duration and sales trends.

An increase in lapse rates early in the life of the policy would tend to reduce the funds of
the Association, but later increases are broadly neutral in effect.

Discount rate

Life insurance liabilities are determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected
benefits and future administration expenses directly related to the contract, less the
discounted value of the expected theoretical premiums that would be required to meet these
future cash outflows. Discount rates are based on current industry risk rates, adjusted for
the Association’s own risk exposure. A decrease in the discount rate will increase the value
of the liability.
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Financial instruments

The Association’s principal financial instruments are cash, short-term investments, loans
and receivables, accrued expenses and other liabilities. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance their operations.

Due to the short-term nature of transactions, the carrying amounts of financial instruments
such as cash, short-term investments, loans and receivables, claims payable and accrued
expenses and other liabilities approximate their fair values. Also, due to the insignificance
of the fair value adjustment for ‘Due from KGMD, its carrying amount approximates its
fair value.

Financial Risks

The Association is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabilities
and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk that the Association is exposed
to is that the proceeds from its financial assets may not be sufficient to fund the obligations
arising from its insurance contracts. The most important components of this financial risk
are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

These risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and debt securities products,
all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements.

Credit Risk
This is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Association’s exposure
to credit risk:

a. The credit risk in respect of customer balances, incurred on nonpayment of premiums
or contribution will only persist during the grace period specified in the following
document or when the policy is either paid up or terminated.

b. Reinsurance is placed with highly rated counterparties and concentration of risk is
avoided by following policy guidelines in respect of counterparties’ limits that are set
each year and are subject to regular reviews. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of credit worthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance
purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c. The Association sets the maximum amounts and limits that may be advanced to
corporate counterparties by reference to their long term credit ratings.
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The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
statements of financial position.

2024 2023
Financial Assets

Cash* : P 12,633,065 P 14,358,996
Short-term investments 12,629,990 14,124,632

Loans and receivables
Due from KGMI 12,670,851 10,305,332
Interest receivable 21,206 20,669
Financial assets at FVPL 6,374,107 6,106,856
Held-to-maturity investments 31,301,235 30,580,918
g 75,630,454 P 75,497,403

*Excluding cash on hand

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Association
by classifying assets according to the Association’s credit ratings of counterparties as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023.

2024
Neither Past-Due nor Impaired
Investment Non-Investment Past Due and
Grade Grade Impaired Total
Financial Assets
Cash* P 12,633,065 P - P - P 12,633,065
Short-term investments 12,629,990 - - 12,629,990
Loans and receivable -
Due from KGMI - 12,670,851 - 12,670,851
Interest
receivable 21,206 - - 21,206
Financial assets at FVPL 6,374,107 - - 6,374,107
Held-to-maturity investments 31,301,235 - - 31,301,235

P 62,959,603 P 12,670,851 P P 75,630,454

* Excluding cash on hand
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Neither Past-Due nor Impaired

Investment  Non-Investment Past Due and

Grade Grade Impaired Total
Financial Assets
Cash* i 14,358,996 P - P - P 14,358,996
Short-term investments 14,124,632 - - 14,124,632
Loans and receivable -
Due from KGMI - 10,305,332 - 10,305,332
Due from MFI
branches -
Interest
receivable 20,669 - - 20,669
Financial assets at FVPL 6,106,856 - - 6,106,856
Held-to-maturity investments 30,580,918 - - 30,580,918
P 65,192,071 ? 10305331 P - P 75497403

* Excluding cash on hand

The Association uses a credit rating concept based on the borrowers and counterparties’
overall credit worthiness, as follows:

Investment grade financial assets are assets which have strong capacity to meet the
Association’s financial commitments and are unsusceptible to adverse effects of changes in
economic conditions.

Non-investment grade financial assets are assets which are vulnerable to impairment due to
the assets’ significant speculative characteristics. Adverse economic conditions will likely
impair non-investment grade financial assets.

The Association trades only with members who are also members of the related parties. The
receivables represent mostly collections of the related parties pertaining to contributions for
premiums for life insurance, loan redemption assistance and provident fund unremitted to
the Association. Receivables are generally on a 1-30 days terms and are all current. All
receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

The Association conducts periodic review of allowance for credit losses each financial year
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the
related party operates.

Liquidity Risk

This risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial instruments.
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The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Association’s exposure
to liquidity risk:

a) The Association Liquidity risk policy sets out the assessment and determination of what
constitutes liquidity risk for the Association. Compliance with the policy is monitored
and exposures and breaches are reported to the management. The policy is regularly
reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

b) Set guidelines on assets allocations, portfolio limit structures and, maturity profiles of

assets, in order to ensure sufficient funding available to meet insurance and investment
contracts obligations.

The following table shows an analysis of assets liabilities analyzed according to whether
they are expected to be recovered or settled within one (1) year and beyond 1 year from
reporting date:

i
lpto
one ear [Fyears Myers  OwrSyeas  Notern Total

Financial Assets
Cash P06 P -] s ] T S 1
Short-lm investments 12629990 . . - - 2629990
Loans and receivble - - - - .
Due from KGM] 260851 - - - - [26m 81
Due from MF[ branches . - - - -
[nterest receivable 21,06 . . - - 21,06
Finencil assets ot FVPL 374,107 - - - - 63107
HTM investients 3LI0LI3S - - - - RIRIIWAN

P T4 B - P f T S TR
*Excluding cash on hand
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200

Upto

Q16 year I3 years 35 yers OverSyers — Notem Totd
Financial Assets
Cash? P 143589 P il Tl - ! -1 14358 9%
Short-term investments 14124632 . . . . 4124632
Loans and receivble : . : .
Due from KGMI 10305332 . . . . 10,303,332
Dug from MF] branches . . . . . .
Interest receivable 20,669 . . . . 20,669
Financial assets at FVPL 6,106,835 . . . . 6,106,850
HTM investments 30580918 - . . - 30380918

PooTS4TA0 B s e - T YR

*Excluding cash on hand
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates. (interest rate risk) and market
prices (price risk).

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Association’s exposure
to market risk.

1) The market risk policy sets out the assessment and determination on what constitutes
the market risk for the Association. Compliance with the policy monitored and
exposures and breaches are reported to the Association risk committee. The policy is
reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

2) Set asset allocation and portfolio limit structure, to ensure that the assets back specific
member liabilities and that assets are held to deliver income and gains for member who
are in line with expectations of the members.

3) Stipulated diversification benchmarks by type of instrument, and the association is
exposed to guaranteed bonuses, cash annuity options when interest rates falls.

19. LEASE COMMITMENT

Association as Lessee

In 2014, the Association entered into an operating lease agreement for its office space for a
period of seventeen (17) months commencing on August 1, 2014 and ended on December
31, 2015. This was subsequently renewed by the Association on a yearly basis. As of
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December 31, 2022, the Association has renewed the lease agreement for a period of one
year commencing on January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024.

Rent expense pertaining to this lease agreement amounting to 240,000 is recorded under
“General and Administrative Expenses” in 2024 and 2023 (see Note 14).

20. CONTINGENCIES

The Association has no contingent liabilities arising in the ordinary conduct of business
which are either pending decision by the courts or being contested, the outcome of which
are not presently determinable. No provision for probable losses arising from legal
contingencies was recognized in the Association’s financial statements in 2024 and 2023.

21.

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE ARISING FROM NON-CASH
TRANSACTIONS FROM INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

There are no non-cash transactions from investing and financing activities for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

22.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER REVENUE
REGULATIONS NO.15-2010

Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulation
(RR) No. 15-2010 which took effect on December 29, 2010 which provides for additional
information required to be disclosed in the notes to financial statements regarding taxes,
duties and license fee, paid or accrued, during the taxable year. Specifically, the disclosure
should include the following: (a) amount of Value-Added Tax (VAT) output taxes declared
during the year with account title and amount/s; (b) amount of VAT Input taxes claimed;
(¢) landed cost of imports and the amount of customs duties and tariff fees; (d) amount of
excise taxes, classified per major product category; (e) documentary stamp tax (DST) on
loan instruments and other transactions; (f) all other taxes, local and national, license and
permit fees lodged under taxes and licenses account both under the Cost of sales and
operating expense accounts; (g) amount of withholding taxes;(h) periods covered and
amounts of deficiency assessments; and (i) tax cases and amounts involved.

In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 15-2010, hereunder are the
information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

1. The Association is not VAT-registered being a tax exempt organization.
2. Landed Cost, Customs’ Duties and Tariff Fees

The Association did not have any importations in 2024 and 2023 that would require for
payment of customs duties and tarift fees.
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KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI)

MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA), INC.
(A Non-Stock, Not-for-Prafit Asseciation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Excise Tax

The Association did not have any transactions in 2024 and 2023 which are subject to
excise tax.

Other Taxes and Licenses

2023
Local tax P 135458
National tax ,
P 135458
Withholding Taxes
2024
National Internal Revenue Taxes
Withholding Tax on Compensation P 5,033
Expanded Withholding Tax 12,000
P 17,033

Deficiency Tax Assessments and Tax Cases

As of December 31, 2024, the Association did not have any final deficiency tax
assessments from the BIR nor does it have cases outstanding or pending in courts or
bodies outside of the BIR in any of the open years.

Other Information

All other information prescribed to be disclosed by the BIR has been included in this
note.
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4/28/25, 2:40 PM Yahoo Mail - Your BIR AFS eSubmission uploads were received

Your BIR AFS eSubmission uploads were received

m: eafs@bir.gov.ph (eafs@bir.gov.ph)
kgi_mba@yahoo.com
Cc: cristalynestel@gmail.com

Monday, April 28, 2025 at 02:24 PM GMT+8

Hi KAZAMA GRAMEEN (KGI) MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (KGI-MBA) INC.

y

Valid files

« EAFS008132982ITRTY122024.pdf
* EAFS008132982AFSTY122024.pdf

Invalid file

s <None>

Transaction Code: AFS-0-J8SD6CG02PQXVMS3QV31224P0P31TTRPZ
Submission Date/Time: Apr 28, 2025 02:24 PM
Company TIN: 008-132-982

Please be reminded that you accepted the terms and conditions for the use of this portal and expressly agree,
warrant and certify that:

» The submitted forms, documents and attachments are complete, truthful and correct based on the personal
knowledge and the same are from authentic records;

e The submission is without prejudice to the right of the BIR to require additional document, if any, for
completion and verification purposes;

» The hard copies of the documents submitted through this facility shall be submitted when required by the BIR
in the event of audit/investigation and/or for any other legal purpose.

This is a system-generated e-mail. Please do not reply.
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